
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 
12:00 P.M., December 10, 2024 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 
1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 
 

I. ROLL CALL 
 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 1st Printing – Monday, December 02 2024 
 2nd Printing – Sunday, December 08, 2024 
 
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – November 26, 2024 

                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                   PAGE (S)                   
IV.     NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2025-011 ……………………………………………………..                1 - 2 

2. Resolution No. FY2025-007(A) …………………………………………………               3 - 6 

3. Change Order 1 …………………………………………………………………………              7 - 11 

4. 2024 LIHTC QAP / Application Cycle …………………………………………             12 - 18 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
1. Resolution No. FY2025-008 ……………………………………………………… 

 
VI. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS

1. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, January 14, 2025  
@ 12:00 p.m.   
 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 











 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 1 of 19 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 
12:00 P.M., November 26, 2024 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 
1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
After notice was duly given, pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the Bylaws of 
the Authority, the Board of Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board meeting was called to 
order at 12:07 P.M., Tuesday, November 26, 2024, at the GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 1st 
floor Conference room. Vice Chairman Sanchez indicated that 5 of 6 members of the Board of 
Commissioners were present, representing a quorum and that the meeting would proceed as 
scheduled. 

 
Viewed 
virtually via 

ZOOM: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83354150880?pwd=iBj85JqOCnRS5skn3btDMAtfnMunGa.1 

YOUTUBE: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag 

BOC 
Commissioners 
Attendance 
 

Dr. John Rivera, Chairman                                        Virtual              In-Person  
Nate Sanchez, Vice Chairman                                  Virtual             In-Person   
Anisia Delia, Commissioner                                      Virtual            In-Person    
Emilia Rice, Commissioner                                       Virtual             In-Person   
Victor Torres, Commissioner                                   Virtual             In-Person    
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner                     Virtual             In-Person    
*Request to attend meeting virtually was submitted and acknowledged via email.  

GHURA 
Management/ 
Staff  

Elizabeth F. Napoli, Executive Director          Julie Lujan, MIS Administrator      Carlo Ongklungel  
Fernando B. Esteves, Deputy Director           Sonny Perez, AE Manager             Naricel Carlos   
Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant                     Norma San Nicolas  
Frances Danieli, Controller                              Narcissa Ada, AMP1 Manager  
Katherine Taitano, RP&E Chief Planner         Gina Cura, AMP2 Manager  
Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator     Patrick Bamba, AMP3 Manager  
Antonio Camacho, Procurement                     Philomena San Nicolas, AMP4 Manager  
Pearly Mendiola, GT Manager                         Jolyn Terlaje   
Nicole Alejandro                                                Miguel Fernandez           
Michael Ricuyal                                                   Ervin Santiago     
Maria Cherry Canete □                                         Patrick Luces  
 

Legal Counsel Eliseo M. Florig Jr., GHURA’s Legal Counsel   
 

Public Mr. Lin Yan (virtual)                               Hua Nguyen 
Dr. Joel Joseph (virtual)                         Joe Taitano 
Mr. Mitch Tompson (virtual)                Mitsuki Hurayama 
Byron Rodriguez                                     Ken San Nicolas 

 
II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1st Printing – Tuesday, November 19, 2024 
    2nd Printing – Sunday, November 24, 2024    



 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 2 of 19 
 

 
   ACKNOWLEDGED BY VICE CHAIRMAN SANCHEZ 
 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES: [368/24] Vice Chairman Sanchez 
thanked everyone in attendance and indicated to the public that the board meeting 
is a regularly scheduled board meeting and not a Q&A session. Commissioner 
Torres moved to approve the board meeting minutes of the GHURA BoC regularly 
scheduled meeting of November 12, 2024, subject to grammatical and content 
corrections. Commissioner Rice seconded the motion. The Board of Commissioners 
voted unanimously to approve the previous board meeting minutes.  
 

IV. NEW BUSINESS: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Resolution No. 
FY2025-0010-
Resolution 
approving the 
Amendment 
authorizing GHURA 
to accept an 
additional two 
million five 
hundred thousand 
dollars 
($2,500,000.00) in 
Guam Coronavirus 
State and Local 
Fiscal Recovery 
Funds for 
Community 
Development 
Projects; an 
additional two 
hundred thousand 
dollars 
($200,000.00) in 
Guam Coronavirus 
State and Local 
Fiscal Recovery 
Funds for 
associated 
administrative 
costs; and the 
ratification of all 

[369/24] Executive Director Napoli read 
Resolution No. FY2025-010 on pages 6-8 
of 24 in the November 26, 2024, GHURA 
BoC packet provided as a hard copy to the 
commissioners and posted online on the 
GHURA website.  

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 3 of 19 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Board of 
Commissioners 
actions taken 
pursuant to 
Resolution Nos. 
FY2024-016 and 
FY2024-016(A). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
[370/24] Commissioner 
Rice moved to approve 
Resolution No. FY2025-
010, approving the 
Amendment 
authorizing GHURA to 
accept an additional 
two million five 
hundred thousand 
dollars 
($2,500,000.00) in 
Guam Coronavirus 
State and Local Fiscal 
Recovery Funds for 
Community 
Development Projects; 
an additional two 
hundred thousand 
dollars ($200,000.00) 
in Guam Coronavirus 
State and Local Fiscal 
Recovery Funds for 
associated 
administrative costs; 
and the ratification of 
all Board of 
Commissioners actions 
taken pursuant to 
Resolution Nos. 
FY2024-016 and 
FY2024-016(A). 
Commissioner Torres 
seconded the motion.  
Motion passed 
unanimously.  



 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 4 of 19 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

2. Resolution No. 
FY2025-009- 
Resolution 
approving the 
Condemnation of 
properties by 
eminent domain of 
Lot 5327-4-R5, Lot 
5327-4-2, Lot 5327-
4-3, Lot 5327-4-4, 
Lot 5327-4-5, Lot 
5328-REM-R2, and 
Lot 5328-REM-2, 
including fee simple 
title thereto, for 
public use.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

[371/24] Director Napoli read Resolution 
No. FY2025-009- Resolution approving 
the Condemnation of properties by 
eminent domain of Lot 5327-4-R5, Lot 
5327-4-2, Lot 5327-4-3, Lot 5327-4-4, Lot 
5327-4-5, Lot 5328-REM-R2, and Lot 
5328-REM-2, including fee simple title 
thereto, for public use, on pages 1-5 of 24 
in the November 26, 2024 GHURA BoC 
packet provided as a hard copy to the 
commissioners and posted online on the 
GHURA website.  
 

Dr. Joseph stated the following: 
 

o 

o 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 5 of 19 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deputy Director Esteves stated the 
following: 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 6 of 19 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 7 of 19 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 8 of 19 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 9 of 19 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Deputy Director Esteves stated the 
following: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 10 of 19 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 11 of 19 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

o 

o 

o 

o 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 12 of 19 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

§ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 13 of 19 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 14 of 19 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 15 of 19 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 16 of 19 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 17 of 19 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
[372/24] Commissioner 
Rice moved to approve 
Resolution No. FY2025-
009, approving the 
Condemnation of 
properties by eminent 
domain of Lot 5327-4-R5, 
Lot 5327-4-2, Lot 5327-
4-3, Lot 5327-4-4, Lot 
5327-4-5, Lot 5328-REM-
R2, and Lot 5328-REM-2, 
including fee simple title 
thereto, for public use. 
Commissioner Torres 
seconded the motion. 
Motion passed 
unanimously.  



 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 18 of 19 
 

 
V. OLD BUSINESS 

AGENDA ITAM 
 

DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Resolution No. 
FY2025-008, 
Resolution to 
extend loan funds 
to Manelu by 
GHURA 

 
 

[373/24] Executive Director Napoli 
requested to table Resolution No. FY2025-
008, Resolution to extend loan funds to 
Manelu by GHURA  

[374/24] Vice 
Chairman Sanchez 
acknowledged Director 
Napoli’s request.  

 
 

VI. GENERAL DISCUSSIONS / ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. 2024 LIHTC 
QAP/Application 
Cycle 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. Next proposed 
scheduled Board 
Meeting; 
December 10, 
2024 @ 12:00 
p.m. 

 

[375/24] Executive Director Napoli stated: 
 

 

 

 

 

There were no further discussions.  
 
 
(374/24) Vice Chairman Sanchez requested 
that commissioners mark their calendars 
and confirm with GHURA staff regarding 
attendance of the next scheduled meeting.  

No Action taken. 

 



 
 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2024                                                       Page 19 of 19 
 

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

  [376/24] 
Commissioner Torres 
moved to adjourn the 
November 26, 2024, 
meeting. 
Commissioner Rice 
seconded the motion. 
There were no 
objections. Motion 
passed. The meeting 
was adjourned. 

SEAL 

Elizabeth F. Napoli 
       Board Secretary/Executive Director 

Date



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
RESOLUTION NO. FY2025-011

Moved by: Seconded by:_                                         .

RESOLUTION APPROVING ABOVE-STEP RECRUITMENT FOR THE ENGINEER II
POSITION (PERMANENT POSITION)

WHEREAS, Under the enabling legislation of the Authority, Title 12 §5103 GCA, its 
Board of Commissioners is empowered “to employ officers, technical 
experts, agents and employees, permanent and temporary as it may 
deem necessary; and shall determine their qualifications, duties, tenure 
and compensation…”; and

WHEREAS, Title 4 of the Guam Code Annotated, “…The appointing authority, or the 
head of an agency, department or public corporation listed in 4 
GCA,§4105(a) may petition the Director of Administration, the Judicial 
Council (as to Judicial Branch employment) or the agency, department 
or public corporation’s governing board or commission (as to an agency, 
department or public corporation listed in 4GCA §4105(a)) for 
recruitment at a higher step not to exceed Step 10, because of 
documented difficulty or exceptional qualifications……”; and

WHEREAS, with the upcoming A/E construction projects, specifically for the 
Modernization Grant Program; and

WHEREAS, with the completion of the recruitment of the Engineer II permanent 
position and having been issued the job offer, Mr. Miguel T. Fernandez 
submitted his request to Executive Management requesting to petition 
the GHURA Board of Commissioners for an above the minimum step 
recruitment for the position of Engineer II based on exceptional 
qualifications; and 

WHEREAS, Mr. Fernandez’s exceptional qualifications for the Engineer II position 
consists of the following:  

30+ years of experience in civil engineering design and construction 
management that spans over various military, government, and 
privately own projects. 
Various certifications which include: Construction Project 
Management, Occupational Safety & Health Practitioner, NAVFAC 
Construction Quality Management, and EPA CGP Site Inspector 
Training;
Worked in GHURA A/E Division for almost 2 years – Contributing to 
several ongoing projects, whilst collaborating effectively with the 
engineering team. 
Certified Engineer by the Professional Regulation Commission (PRC)
of the Republic of the Philippines; and
Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering, Manuel T. Quezon 
University, Manila, Philippines – March 1987 

 
Board Meeting of December 10, 2024

 
PAGE 1 of 18



WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners acknowledges both the recruitment difficulty
and Mr. Fernandez’s exceptional qualifications, and the critical need to 
move the construction projects along; and

WHEREAS, Management believes the compensation package of salary and benefits 
(i.e. retirement, holidays, annual/sick leave etc.) is reasonable and 
respectfully requests an above step recruitment of Mr. Fernandez, NG5-
10(E), $78,214 p/a; $37.60 p/hr; and 

WHEREAS, the GHURA Board recognizes it has the discretionary authority to go 
below or beyond management’s recommendations (i.e., NG5-2(A), 
$50,044 p/a; $24.06 p/hr through NG5-10(F), $83,727 p/a; $40.25 p/hr -
maximum), but supports management’s request for the above-step 
recruitment; and

WHEREAS, in consideration of both the recruitment difficulty and exceptional 
qualifications, the Board of Commissioners wishes to compensate Mr.
Fernandez at above the minimum step for the temporary position of 
Engineer II at Pay Grade “NG4,” Step 9(F), which is $68,271.00 per 
annum; and

WHEREAS, Funding for the above-step recruitment is available under federal funds;
and now therefore be it further

RESOLVED, that in consideration of the applicant’s exceptional knowledge and 
experience, the GHURA Board of Commissioners grants the above-step 
recruitment for:

Mr. Miguel T. Fernandez, NG5-9(E), $78,214 p/a; $37.60 p/hr.

IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – DECEMBER 10, 2024
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES:
AYES: 
NAYS:
ABSENT:
ABSTAINED:

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full
true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly adopted by the Guam Housing and 
Urban Renewal Authority Board of
Commissioners on December 10, 2024.

                                                                       ___________________________________
ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI

                                                                       Board Secretary / Executive Director

 
Board Meeting of December 10, 2024

 
PAGE 2 of 18



 
Board Meeting of December 10, 2024

 
PAGE 3 of 18



 
Board Meeting of December 10, 2024

 
PAGE 4 of 18



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

RESOLUTION NO. FY2025-007(A)

Moved by: Seconded by

RESOLUTION APPROVING FISCAL YEAR 2025 SECTION 8 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER
PROGRAM PAYMENT STANDARDS (UPDATED)

WHEREAS, 24 CFR 982.503 (3) requires Public Housing Agencies administering the Section 8 
Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program to establish a Payment Standards Schedule 
with a single payment standard amount for each unit size based on the area’s Fair Market 
Rent (FMR); and

WHEREAS, 24 CFR 982.505 requires GHURA to utilize the Payment Standards Schedule to calculate 
the maximum monthly housing assistance payment for the participant family under the 
Section 8 HCV Program. When utilizing the Payment Standard for the family, it shall be 
the lower of (a) the payment standard for the family unit size; or (b) the payment 
standard amount for the size of the dwelling unit rented by the family; and

WHEREAS, with exceptions to HUD-approved waivers and reasonable accommodations for persons 
with disabilities, 24 CFR 985.3(i) requires Public Housing Agencies to review and adjust 
its voucher payment standard amounts annually, to ensure it is within the basic range that 
is not less than 90 percent and not more than 110 of the area’s Fair Market Rent. The 
2025 FMR for each unit size below has increased as much as 4 percent. The FY2025
Payment Standards are based on the published Fair Market Rent for Guam as 
illustrated below:

Table 1: Fair Market Rents for 2025 and 2024

FMR 0 BR 1 BR 2 BR 3 BR 4 BR 5 BR 6 BR
CY2025 $1,222 $1,345 $1,765 $2,473 $2,964 $3,408 $3,853
CY2024 $1206 $1326 $1742 $2455 $2956 $3399 $3841

Difference $16 $19 $23 $18 $8 $9 $12

WHEREAS, when establishing the Section 8 payment standards, GHURA considers important factors 
that normally impact the successful leasing of vouchers.
These factors include:

The prevailing rental rates in the private rental market
The cost of basic utilities, such as power, water, sewer, and trash pickup services
How long it takes families to find a suitable unit 
The number of lapsed vouchers
The number of failed units
Shelter burden for the families
The FY2025 Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program budget, and
The impact of other renters in the private market

For CY2025 the proposed Payment Standards Schedules for each unit size are set at 110
percent, but not more than 120 percent for reasonable accommodation for persons with 

 
Board Meeting of December 10, 2024

 
PAGE 5 of 18



disabilities, and VASH participants in accordance with Section 102 (d) of the Housing 
Opportunity Through Modernization Act of 2016:

Table 2: Proposed 2025 Payment Standards for the regular HCV and
Special Purpose Voucher Programs

0 BR 1 BR 2 BR 3 BR 4 BR 5 BR 6 BR
$1,344 $1,479 $1,941 $2,720 $3,260 $3,748 $4,238

110% of 
FMR

110% of 
FMR

110% of 
FMR

110% of 
FMR

110% of 
FMR

110% of 
FMR

110% of 
FMR

WHEREAS, 24 CFR 982.503(d)(5) permits housing authorities to establish without HUD approval or 
notification, an exceptional payment standard for participants with a disability and for 
veteran under the Veteran Affairs Supportive Housing Program. The exceptional 
payment standards are to provide disabled and VASH participants a fair chance to access
and enjoy housing opportunities. The exception payment standard amount for an 
individual family shall not exceed 120 percent of the applicable FMR. 

Table 3: Proposed 2025 Exception Payment Standards for Reasonable Accommodation 
for persons with disabilities and participants of the Veteran Affairs Supportive Housing 
Programs

0 BR 1 BR 2 BR 3 BR 4 BR 5 BR 6 BR
$1,466 $1,614 $2,118 $2,967 $3,556 $4,089 $4,623

120% of 
FMR

120% of 
FMR

120% of 
FMR

120% of 
FMR

120% of 
FMR

120% of 
FMR

120% of 
FMR

WHEREAS, the approved Payment Standards Schedule shall be applied to HAP contracts effectuated 
for calendar year 2025; and therefore, be it;

RESOLVED, that the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority Board of Commissioners approve 
the updated Payment Standards for fiscal year 2025.

IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – DECEMBER 10, 2024
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:
ABSTAINED:

I hereby certify that the foregoing is full, true and 
correct copy of the Resolution duly adopted By the 
Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority Board 
of Commissioner on December 10, 2024.

                               
                                                                             Elizabeth F. Napoli

Board Secretary / Executive Director

 
Board Meeting of December 10, 2024

 
PAGE 6 of 18



Change Order No. 1
Rehabilitation of Bradley Building IFB-Ghura-24-12

November 26, 2024

Mr. Young Kim
General Manager
Genesis-Tech Corporation 
P.O. Box 23059
Barrigada, Guam 96921   

SUBJECT: Change Order No. 1 - IFB#GHURA-24-12; Rehabilitation of Bradley Building 

Dear Mr. Kim:  

In connection with your Contract dated October 22, 2024, for the Rehabilitation of Bradley Building. The following 
change order in accordance with Section 28, General Conditions of the contract for construction shall be amended to 
include the added changes:

Provide all labor, materials, supervision, transportation and equipment for the complete construction and installation, 
according to the contract plans, specifications and described scope of work for the additional items listed below.

Subject to the conditions hereinafter set forth, any equitable adjustment of the contract price and the contract time is 
established as follows:

1. The Addition of Items are defined per the attached break down for the Supply of Materials and Labor for the 
Rehabilitation of Bradley Building such as:

Material and Labor description Amount
1. Remove existing weather-head and concrete repair $350.00
2. Utility Earthwork trench w/bedding sand $4,500.00
3. Design and build new reinforced concrete pedestal $12,000.00
4. Electrical raceway (New 3-#2/0 and 1-#6 Ground Rod in ½ 

dia Conduit) 
$5,500.00

5. Electrical Gutter splice with Aluminum 2in. dia pipe $3,500.00
6. Master Electrical engineer certification $2,500.00

Total:     $28,350.00

 
Board Meeting of December 10, 2024

 
PAGE 7 of 18



A. The aforementioned change and work affected thereby are subject to all contract stipulations and 
covenants. 

B. The rights of GHURA are not prejudiced.

C. All claims against GHURA which are incidental to as a consequence of the aforementioned change are 
satisfied.

Supporting Documents Attached

1. Contractor's Request

Original Contract: $183,000.00 Contract NTP Date: October 28,2024

Changes Approved: -0- Contract Duration: 120 Calendar Days

Adjusted Contract Amount: -0- Contract Completion Date: February 25, 2025

This Change Order: $28,350.00 Extention This Change Order: Original completion 
date

Adjusted Contract Amount: $211,350.00 New Completion Date: Original completion 
date

Genesis-Tech Corporation

_________________________                                            
              Mr. Young Kim
              General Manager

Date: _________________                     

             GUAM HOUSING & URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
                                                              

               _________________________
Elizabeth F. Napoli
Executive Director

              Date: _________________

 
Board Meeting of December 10, 2024

 
PAGE 8 of 18



 
Board Meeting of December 10, 2024

 
PAGE 9 of 18



 
Board Meeting of December 10, 2024

 
PAGE 10 of 18



 
Board Meeting of December 10, 2024

 
PAGE 11 of 18



 
Board Meeting of December 10, 2024

 
PAGE 12 of 18



 
Board Meeting of December 10, 2024

 
PAGE 13 of 18



 
Board Meeting of December 10, 2024

 
PAGE 14 of 18



 
Board Meeting of December 10, 2024

 
PAGE 15 of 18



 
Board Meeting of December 10, 2024

 
PAGE 16 of 18



 
Board Meeting of December 10, 2024

 
PAGE 17 of 18



 
Board Meeting of December 10, 2024

 
PAGE 18 of 18


